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FOREWORD

The paper under the title “Calafat the town of roses – a short presentation “represents an attempt to emphasize the importance of the town of Calafat harbour on the bank of the Danube due to it’s strategically position and to its future possibilities of economic development. The paper is written in English in the hope of realizing a bond with the western society. The future plan of building a bridge over the Danube and the possibility of realizing a plan which includes the development of the tourism increase the town’s importance. The presentation begins with a historical background in order to trace its ancient roots. The second chapter includes geographical details about flora, fauna, atmospheric conditions, and climate. The third chapter is a map which includes all the important buildings in the town in different sections: administration, religion, education, etc. The last chapter deals with the educational aspects in Calafat from early times until nowadays. The main goal of the paper is to underline the beauty and the importance of this little town on the bank of the Danube.

CALAFAT

THE TOWN OF ROSES

1. A short historical presentation
The town of Calafat is known to be the town of fights, of business and of trade. Its genesis is obscure. The name appeared first in 1424 while Dan the Second, the ruler of Tara Romaneasca emphasized in a document the importance of the Monastery of Tismana. The town was founded earlier. In 106 B.C. a fortress was built at Desa and a defending wall at Calafat. There are also some archaeological discoveries of coins at Basarabi and Ciupercenii Vechi which proves this fact.


Bogdan P. Hasdeu, a great Romanian historian stated that the town took its name from the people of Genoa. Another hypothesis sustains that it has Byzantine origin-Kalafatis, the name came from the operation of “caulking” which meant the tarring of the ships. The harbour was the place where the merchants from Genoa and Byzantium came to verify the vessels and exchange goods.


Another opinion is that is used to be a colony of fishermen. There is also a legend which tells of Mihail Calafat who built a workshop during 1040-1042 to caulk and repair ships. He was to become a well known handicraftsman. There were more attestations after 1424. For example, during the war between Turks and Austro-Habsburgs (1716-1718), the town played a key role. Later on, the harbour was to become a market where goods were exchanged. The harbour was included in European routes. Calafat suffer again due to fights which took place during the XIX th century. The modernization and emancipation of the town began in 1855. After 1859 its social, religious and economical development was obvious. A town hospital was built there, too.


The main importance of Calafat must be underlined as its inhabitants had participated to the War of Independence which took place between 1877 and 1878. Here, the first cannonballs were fired. The people of Calafat build seven monuments in the memory of the 1877 war heroes as a sign of gratitude and appreciation. After this war Romania was proclaimed independent from the political point of view.


Between 1900 and 1918 the streets were paved, he power system was introduced, traveling by river was modernized, some plots were ploughed and sown because the land in this region is very rich. The exchange of goods was flourishing in this period in spite of hard times. There had been attempts to modernize the educational system, some schools had been built. The Second World War brought misery and disaster. Famine, incertitude, all hardships provoked resistance against Russian troops.


During 1944-1990 industry was developed but this aspect was only a shallow image which proved to be disastrous afterwards. Nowadays some factories function but only with foreign investors.


After 1989 the process of changing has been obvious and it is important to stress the key role of Calafat as a harbour, customs and nevertheless a link with Europe. On the 22nd of October 1997 the town was declared municipality as a sign of recognition of its importance in the contemporary life as Dolj department but also of the whole continent. Future plans of building a bridge across the Danube are welcomed.

2. The geographical background of Calafat

Calafat is a town represented by roses, chestnut trees and old oaks. It is settled in the southern-western part of Dolj district, on the left bank of Danube. It includes Ciupercenii Vechii, Basarabi and Golenti villages.

In the: northern-eastern part it borders with Maglavit

                    Southern-eastern part with Poiana Mare                      
                    Northern-western part with Bulgaria 

                    Southern, Southern-eastern part with Smardan and                  

                    Ciupercenii Noi 


The land surface is about 14,000 ha, the street length of Calafat is 35 km. the town is split by two very large avenues, each avenues having two streets, separated by alleys with roses, lime trees, wild chestnut trees.


Average temperature – 11.4 Co 

January is the coldest month of the year and July is the hottest month.


Rainfall – 546 mm/square meter, 100 mm less than the average rainfall in our country.


The winds blow in the directions North West-South East, South West-North East, and West-East. In spring the winds blow from West and South West, in autumn from North West and South West, in winter west, north-west, south-west


Concerning the water level of the Danube there is a variation of 4-5 m, the maximum level in March, April, and June; the minimum in September, October.


There are puddles and some puddles have been transformed in fish farms.


The flora is of rider meadow and of steppe kind. The pleasant image of this flora is given by the presence of large acacia forests.

FLORA
   

     Willow

                                Osier

                                Poplar

    
           
     Reed  

                                Rush 

                                Chestnut tree

                                Lime tree

                                Acacia tree

                                Mulberry tree

                                Nut tree

                                Peach tree

FAUNA        

     Otter 

                                Fox



        
     Hare

                                Ground squirrel 

                                Polecat                                    

                                Wild goose 

 

                                Lark

                                Stork                               

                                Shells 

                                Shellfish

                                Frogs 

                                Snails   

                                Carp 

                                Salmon 

                                Pike 

                                Plaice

3. The town of Calafat- the map

Nowadays the town of Calafat is a flourishing prosperous town. There are some important buildings and places worth visiting.

CULTURE

–         “Independenta” secondary school (photo 1)
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  1.

· “Marincu” Palace built between 1905 and 1907 by the Italian constructor Adotti, from the plans of the architect Constantin Rogalski, was donated to the Town Hall by Stefan Marincu, mayor between 1911 and 1914. Since 1970 it has become the Art Museum (photo 2)
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  2. 

· “Stefan Milcu” secondary school

· “Gheorghe Braescu” elementary school

· No. 2 elementary school

· The House of Culture which dates from 1963 has a festivity hall of 500 seats and the “Marin Sorescu” studio with 100 seats.    

RELIGION 

–         The church “Adormirea maicii Domnului” was built between 1868 and 1872 and modernized in 1925

· St. Nicolae’s Cathedral (1730-1740)

· The church “Izvorul Tamaduirii” was founded between 1864 and 1874 by the Greek community of Calafat 

HISTORY                                                                                                                     

· The monument celebrating 100 years of Romanian Independence (photo 3)
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  3.
· The monument of Calafat’s First World War heroes

· The “Tudor Vladimirescu” Monument

· Covered Fountain 

· The monument of the first Romanian soldier who died in the War of Independence in 1877

· Independence Monument  
ADMINISTRATION 

· Calafat’s Town Hall. The building which was built in the beginning of the 20th century belonged to I.S.Dragulescu, town’s mayor in 1902-1903 and 1905-1906 (photo 4)
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  4.

· The Court of Law former head-quarter of the Town Hal (photo 5)
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· Municipal Hospital (photo 6)

[image: image6.jpg]


  6.
· Prosecutor’s Office near Court of Law 

TOURISM 

· Panoramic Hotel (photo 7)
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  7.
· Alley to the river wall (photo 8)
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· Chestnut trees Boulevard

· The beach (photo 9)
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  9.
ECONOMY

· Romanian Trade Bank Headquarters 

· Agricultural bank Headquarters

· Tiriac Bank Headquarters

· Industrial Platform

· The bread factory

· The market of Calafat

· The Mill of Calafat

TRANSPORT

· Railway station put in use on December first 1895

· The Calafat harbour lies at 442 river mile. It is an important place for crossing the Danube River towards Bulgaria and it is the shortest way between East and West. It is open non-stop for passengers, railway wagons         

    3. The educational system

       Beginning with the first half of the 19th century there had been some attempts in order to build a school in Calafat. The attempts came from the church part and a sort of village school was built so that students could study helped by the priests.


At the end of 19th century only three schools exists there: a No.1 elementary school both for boys and girls and a No. 2 elementary school for girls.


The 20th century brought no change due to luck of founds. A German was functioning at that time in Calafat. In 1917 a private school for boys was established but hardships provoked by that period made it not to function anymore.


Between the two world wars there were only a vocational school for boys and girls, an art elementary school and a vocational secondary school.


During this period of time founds were offered in order to support the educational system 6 million lei were allocated by Ferdinand the King of Romania “Independenta” secondary school had the opportunity to built a hotel for its students.


Between 1945 and 1989, “Independenta” secondary school was involved in the process of modernization. There were built 24 classrooms, 6 laboratories for technological, chemistry, physics applications, workshops for vocational classes and a ground.


Nowadays “Independenta” secondary school is considered the best theoretical school in the town. It offers to all students opportunities for studying modern languages, informatics, biology and other subjects, to apply theoretical problems in well equipped laboratories and maybe in the near future to use the computer in the course of classes.


“Stefan Milcu” is the other secondary school in this town with several profiles: bookkeeping, vocational, arts, farming etc

There are also a Town Library and a Museum which is in the process of modernizations.


The cultural life is very rich in events. The inhabitants celebrate every national occasion by preparing art exhibitions, folk festival and theatre performances. School’ teachers and Town Hall’s members are all involved in this fervent cultural life.


 Calafat is imbued with history and a place worth visiting!                                        
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